
 
 
 

July 6, 2016 
 
 
Re:  16RFP103059C-CL Computer Aided Dispatch and Records Management 

System Implementation 
 
Dear Proposers: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum NO. 2 hereby made a part of the above-
referenced Request for Proposal (RFP).  See attached spreadsheet. 
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the RFP referenced above 
remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Charles Leonard 
 
Charles Leonard, CPPB 
Chief Assistant Purchasing Agent 
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This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original RFP 
documents as noted below: 
 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 

Interfaces 
 
1. Who is the County’s current EMS EPCR provider? Outsourced to AMR/Rural 

Metro – “AMR Med System” 
 
2. Can the County please expand on the functionality provided by Higher Ground? 

Higher Ground records all audio from telephone and radio systems.  It also 
provides a module to record/capture the CAD screen for QA purposes.   

 
3. Court – Odyssey – What type of case management is expected (such as 

Citation, Warrant, etc.)?  At this point, there is no requirement to interface with 
Odyssey.  If the capability exists, please highlight it.   

 
4. Medical ProQA is mentioned in the RFP, is an interface to Fire and/or Police 

ProQA also requested?  We currently use PRO-Q-A for EMD. 
 
Data Conversion 
1. Is documentation on the current data structure available (such as data dictionary 

or database ERD)?  Documentation is not currently available to the county.   
 
2. Was data to be converted from the legacy system previously converted into that 

system, added via third party interface(s) or was all data natively entered 
exclusively through the application user interface?  This is unknown. 

 
a. How many distinct agencies have data in the legacy system? Approx 12 

agencies exist in the DB 
b. Of the total agencies identified, how many of those agencies will be converted? 

10-11 
 
3. Are there specific rules, policies, common practices, or other restrictions that 

would limit or control the selected vendor’s access to the data to be converted?  
None that we know of at this time. 

 
Training 
1. Does Fulton County distinguish between Call Takers and Dispatchers? Yes 
a. If so – how many call takers are employed within Fulton County? Number of 

Dispatchers? There isn’t a firm number for either category.  Total to be trained 
will be the total number of employees listed in the RFP. 

b. If not – how many dispatchers & supervisors are employed? 
c. Can the roles swap? (Dispatcher performing Call Taking and vice-versa.) Yes 
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d. How many shifts do the call takers and dispatchers have? What is the number of 
each on each shift?  3 Shifts – Ideally 6 call takers, 3 supervisors, 6 dispatchers 

2. How many detectives are in the Fulton County Police Department?  
 Approximately 16 detectives at this time. 
3. How many patrol officers are in Fulton County Police Department? 

 Approximately 120 Patrol Officers (SOD and Special Services work patrol on 
occasion and are counted as such for this number). Every officer and detective 
has an assigned laptop.  Laptops are assigned to individual officers not divisions, 
everyone from the Chief on down should have one.  

 
M/FBE Requirements 
1. Is there a M/FBE requirement? See Section 6: Page 6.2 (#6.3) 
2.  Are any points awarded for a M/FBE submission? See Section 5.2. Form E 
3.  Does the business need to reside in Fulton County or can it be in the greater 

Atlanta area? See Section 5.2. Form E 
 
Licensing 
1. Are all 142 laptops for the Police Department dedicated to Patrol? Every officer 

and detective has an assigned laptop.   
 

2. If not, what divisions are the remaining laptops assigned to?  - Laptops are 
assigned to individual officers not divisions, everyone from the Chief on down 
should have one.  

 
1.    Regarding the list of applications and interfaces provided in RFP Section 1.4, County 
Objectives, pages 1-4 through 1-6, please confirm that vendors are not required to 
respond to this section. The vendors are not required to respond to Section1.4 pages 1-
4 through 1-6. 
 
2.    Regarding the list of applications and interfaces provided in RFP Section 1.4, County 
Objectives, pages 1-4 through 1-6, please confirm that the County desires vendors to 
include the following features/modules and interfaces in the proposed solution. We 
could find no corresponding requirements in Exhibit 3, Technical and Functional 
Worksheet.  

CAD Items 
Rip-and-Run Printing/Faxing 
Crime Analysis Plus 
Export to 3rd party EMS providers  
Text-to-911 
Higher Ground Audio recording integration 
 
RMS Items  
Investigator’s Dashboard 
Integrated Mug Shots 
Internet-based citizen access 
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Tyler Odyssey Court interface.  Those items are not REQUIREMENTS but certainly 
acceptable to include as features your product can provide. 
 
3.    Regarding the License count details provided in RFP Section 1.4, County Objectives, 
page 1-3, should vendors provide costs for all 750 mobile workstations? If not, please 
provide the actual number of licenses desired. Provide pricing/licenses for listed 750 
CAD Mobiles. 
 

 
 
Answer:  
 
1 – We do not wish to extend the deadlines 
 
2 – As mentioned in the pre-bid meeting, 142 are RMS mobile devices.  There will be up 
to 750 CAD mobile (police, fire, ems, sheriff, etc ) licensed at any point when all 
responders are properly equipped.   I would image an ‘estimate’ of highest simultaneous 
mobile CAD users would be around 300-350. 
 
3 – Again, the number of licenses was documented.  142 for RMS (plus the police 
admin machines in offices listed in RFP) and up to 750 CAD mobile devices. 
 
4 Training and testing site planning refers to the vendor providing a plan for both a 

training site and test site.  Yes, the County will provide adequate facilities for delivery 
of instructor led training. 

5 Yes, both end-user training and train-the-trainer training is required.   The primary 
training is end-user with the expectation that during that training, the vendor will 
provide adequate materials to support train-the-trainer method for individuals that 
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are unable to attend the training such as new employees or employees that are out 
of the office for an extended period. 

6 Yes, the County does desire to have an offsite, fully redundant Disaster Recovery 
solution.  The County will be responsible for providing the server hardware, routers, 
switches, etc. 

7 Yes, the County will accept a solution that uses Windows Server 2012. 
8 Please see attached spreadsheet. 

 
9 – VIPER/Power 911 
 
10 – We interface to in house Firehouse for Fulton Fire and we also interface to partner 
cities independent instances of Firehouse.  A reasonable effort should be made to be 
flexible in version/releases of firehouse to ensure all opportunities are realized.  County 
Fire is using version 7.1.  I am unsure of the partner agencies and their versions.  
 
11 – Will Fulton County please provide the worksheets contained in Exhibit 3 in 
Microsoft Excel format? Yes see attachment to Addendum No.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 
   
The undersigned Proposer acknowledges receipt of this Addendum by returning 
one (1) copy of this form with the proposal submittal package to the Department 
of Purchasing & Contract Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 
Peachtree Street, S.W., Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the RFP due date 
and time , Wednesday, July 20, 2016 @11:00 am] 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1, this ____ day of _____2016. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
 
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 


	Untitled


Instructions

						Vendor Instructions for Completing the Requirements Worksheets:



		Introduction:				Fulton County has made every effort to develop a concise and inclusive list of requirements that will drive the selection and implementation of our new Public Safety Software system.  We ask that all requirements be marked to insure proper credit. The Vendors may find some duplication in requirements, despite our efforts to avoid duplication.



		General Instructions:		1		The Vendor can only enter information into cells that are shaded. All other cells are "locked" and  the worksheet is "protected".

				2		To obtain credit for fulfilling a requirement, the vendor must enter a response in the "How Addressed by Vendor Solution" cell (Column "D") for that requirement.  The response options are "Core", "Mod" (Modification), "W/A" (Work Around), and "N/I" (Not Included).  See detailed explanations below.

		Worksheet Columns:

		Column "C" -
Criticality		4		Provides the County's level of criticality, or value, for the associated requirement.    
Criticality Codes:  M = Mandatory, C = Critical, H = Highly Desirable,  and D = Desirable.  
These codes are used as a significant part of vendor response scoring.  Requirements labeled as "M" carry a higher score value than "C".  Requirements labeled as "C" carry a higher score value than "H".  Requirements labeled as "H" carry a higher score value than "D". 

		NOTE:				Please remember that the County reserves the right to disqualify a vendor if a significant number of Mandatory requirements are marked as "N/I", as stated in the body of the Request for Proposal.



		Column "D" - 
How Addressed by Vendor Solution		5		This column is used to indicate, via a code, how the related requirement (as described in column "B") is satisfied, or not, by the Vendor's proposed solution.  The available codes for this entry are as follows:

				Code		Description

				Core 		 Requirement is fully and completely met by proposed system and can be demonstrated in the proposed software package.

				Mod 		 Requirement will be provided by proposed modifications to the base software package in the total price proposed. These modifications will be maintained in the base software package in a future release within 6 months of the software package being implemented; and a walk-through of the future release can be provided.

				Option 		 Requirement will be provided by a standard option. The cost of these options shall be provided in the cost section of the proposal.

				Custom 		 Requirement will be provided by custom modifications not supported in future releases and the cost indicated separately.

				Not Incl 		 Requirement cannot be provided.



		Column "E" - 
Modification Hours		5.2		If the "Mod" option is chosen,  the Vendor is indicating that the functionality is not currently included, but a solution "modification" will be made to address the requirement.  The number of hours that will be charged to complete the requirement must be entered in column "E"(Mod Hours ?).   If no entry is provided, the County will assume 0 (zero) hours will be charges to make the modification.  

				5.3		If the "W/A" option is chosen, the vendor is indicating the requested functionality can be accomplished by the Solution in alternate manner. A full explanation of the "work-around" approach must be provided.  

				5.4		If the "N/I" option is chosen, the vendor is indicating that the functionality is not currently included in the proposed solution, and no modification plans are in place or work-around available to address the functionality.



		Column "F" -
Vendor Comments and/or Explanations		6		The Vendor should include a description of any (Mod) modification, and must include a description of any (W/A) work-around approach in column "F".
If an extended explanation is required, an "attachment" may be included in the RFP response with the attachment name provided in column "F" .  Also, the cell may be used for any comments the Vendor wishes to provide.





CAD Interfaces

		Interfaces				Criticality Codes: M=Mandatory,		How Addressed by the Vendor's Solution

						C=Critical, H=Highly Desirable, 

						D=Desirable

						Requirement Criticality		Response  Core/Mod/Option/Custom/Not Incl		Mod Hours		Vendor Comments and/or explanations

		PRIMARY  

		1		E911 - This interface imports subscriber information (ANI and ALI) for each E911 caller, as provided by the telephone company, into CAD-compliant entry process, eliminating the need for redundant data entry. As an option, the E911 data can be simultaneously imported into the mapping system for immediate centering and display.		Mandatory

		2		RMS - Whenever a case (report) number is generated for a CAD call for service, a basic set of CAD information is extracted and transferred to the RMS system to create the RMS incident shell. In addition, the CAD system may inquire into the RMS data files (e.g., master name index, master location index, warrants, or protective orders) for information that relates to the call.		Mandatory

		3		Regional/State/NCIC - Query to state, local, and national databases. Queries to the state, local RMS and national databases will occur automatically from selected CAD commands using the messaging system interface. In addition, the operator (e.g., dispatcher or officer) will have the ability to use stand-alone query screens, eliminating redundant data entry. Responses to such queries should be stored with the call record.		Mandatory

		4		Messaging System - The messaging system is often provided through a messages switch that can be interfaced to the CAD system. The messaging system supports unit-to-unit messaging and unit-to-dispatcher messaging via the MDT system.   Optionally, the messaging system may also support external messaging to other agencies.		Mandatory

		5		Mach Alert - MACH Alert is a full-featured fire station alerting and automation (FSAA) solution within the fire and medical alerting process.		Mandatory

		Additional Interfaces

		6		Pre-arrival Instruction System - The call taker answers to the questions posed by a pre-arrival system are written to the CAD record of the call. Based on the capabilities of the pre-arrival system, the call taker may be prompted by the pre-arrival system based on the CAD call type.		Mandatory

		7		External CAD - The CAD will act as a peer in a multi- CAD environment. The CAD system will accept a new call for service from a participating CAD system, in an agreed-upon structure. The CAD system can generate and transfer a request for service to a peer CAD agency.  The CAD system logs all communication between peer agencies.		Mandatory

		8		Mobile Data - Mobile terminals in law enforcement vehicles provide an extension to the CAD dispatch services. The CAD system must interface with one or more mobile communications infrastructures to which the mobile units are attached. The CAD system can provide silent dispatch orders to a mobile unit, in addition to providing the unit with details of the call and premise history information. The mobile unit can change its status, query CAD information, and query local and national databases, such as wanted- person checks. The queries may not go through CAD but may be part of a separate mobile system.		Mandatory

		9		Push-to-Talk - Import and display in a marquee fashion the radio ID (and optionally the Officer ID) information to the dispatcher by those keying mobile radios. 		Mandatory

		10		Alarms - The CAD system can automatically recognize and accept notification of a business alarm. The system coordinates the alarm input with a key-holder to present information to a call taker. Based upon business rules, the call taker can accept the alarm call and generate a call for service or manually handle the call.		Mandatory

		Communication Interfaces

		11		Internet Call Generation - The CAD system will accept non-dispatchable calls across the Internet. Calls accepted across the Internet will be of a general nature, in which a case (report) number may be needed for insurance purposes.  The case number is generated and recorded.  The call is recorded in the calls for service for statistical reporting.		Mandatory

		12		E-Mailing - The CAD system will automatically format and send an e-mail for selected CAD calls and dispatches. A dispatcher may initiate an e-mail for any call/CFS. The information sent in an e-mail is configurable by the agency but generally contains the call information or a list of open calls meeting certain search criteria. There is an administrative mechanism to define e-mail groups.		Mandatory

		13		Faxing - The CAD system will automatically format and send a FAX for selected CAD calls and dispatches. A dispatcher may initiate a FAX for any call/CFS. The information sent in a FAX is configurable by the agency but generally contains the call information or a list of open calls meeting certain search criteria. There is an administrative mechanism to define FAX groups.		Mandatory

		14		Paging - The CAD system will automatically perform an alphanumeric page for selected CAD calls and dispatches.  A dispatcher may initiate an alphanumeric page for any paging group. The information sent in the page is configurable by the agency but generally contains the call number, type of call, and location of the call. There is an administrative mechanism to define paging groups.		Mandatory

		15		Messaging System - The messaging system is often provided through a messages switch that can be interfaced to the CAD system. The messaging system supports unit-to-unit messaging and unit-to-dispatcher messaging via the MDT system.   Optionally, the messaging system may also support external messaging to other agencies.		Mandatory

		Locational Systems Interfaces

		16		Mobile Mapping - Dispatch information sent to the mobile can be mapped on the mobile itself. The map may provide the unit with driving instructions to the location.		Mandatory

		17		GIS - Interface with the jurisdiction GIS to support maintenance of the CAD map; the law enforcement map layers, such as reporting districts/areas; and the creation of the CAD geofile.		Mandatory

		18		AVL - The CAD system will accept input from an Automatic Vehicle Location system. CAD converts the vehicle geographical location (e.g., X/Y/Z coordinates) to a street address, records the vehicle’s location in the unit history, and automatically performs a change location for the vehicle, if necessary.		Mandatory

		19		Real-Time Mapping - Using the jurisdictional GIS information and the law enforcement map layers, the dispatcher has a tactical view of the city and/or dispatch area. The map can be controlled by specific CAD commands, such as zoom-and-pan, or preset commands, such as zooming to the address of a selected call for service. The dispatcher can map/view all units and open calls for service for an area or the city. Units and calls are labeled on the map.		Mandatory

		Administration Interfaces

		20		Clock Synchronization - Interface and synchronize all servers and CAD workstations with the Master Time Clock. This ensures that each workstation and server provides an accurate time stamp.		Mandatory

		21		Resource Scheduling System - A scheduling system provides the ability for the agency to schedule personnel, including communication center personnel and officers.		Mandatory

		Public Awareness Messaging

		22		Reverse 911 - This capability is typically a part of the telephone system used in the communication center. The system maintains a list of all callers who have elected to be a part of this community alert system. An information message can be created. The system then calls every person on the list and plays the voice message. There is usually not actually an interface between the CAD system and the Reverse 911 system unless the call list is maintained in the CAD database. The Web interface is an option to provide citizens with the ability to add their name to the call list for noncritical incidents.		Mandatory

		23		Media - Public awareness messaging is the ability to broadcast, publish, and send messages to individuals or agencies that need to be aware of critical events. Examples include Amber Alert, critical incident occurrences, utilities, transportation, hospitals, or the public at large via the Internet.		Mandatory

		Emergency Operations Interface

		24		Emergency Operations Center - The operation of an emergency center requires the multidirectional exchange of information between CAD and EOC. Units may be assigned to the EOC, at which point the EOC will take control of the unit until released.  CAD will maintain the ability to monitor the unit availability status. CAD will continually update EOC with call information.		Mandatory





RMS Interfaces

		Interfaces				Criticality Codes: M=Mandatory,		How Addressed by the Vendor's Solution

						C=Critical, H=Highly Desirable, 

						D=Desirable

						Requirement Criticality		Response  Core/Mod/Option/Custom/Not Incl		Mod Hours		Vendor Comments and/or explanations

		1		CAD - Information may be transferred from a CAD system to the RMS when units are initially dispatched, an incident number is assigned, and/or the call is closed in the CAD system.

CAD users require the ability to retrieve information from the RMS based on name, location, and vehicle descriptors		Mandatory

		2		Local/Regional - RMS users need to access and possibly update a variety of local and regional systems. Examples include court systems, prosecutor systems, financial systems, JMS, human resources systems, and multi-jurisdictional information systems. Data exchanges with many of these systems are identified in the specific business functions in this document.
 
These interfaces should be based on national standards, such as GJXDM, NIEM, and NCIC.		Mandatory

		3		State/Federal - The RMS needs to query, add, or modify information stored in state and federal systems. Examples include updates for wanted people, missing people, stolen vehicles/property, and state’s sex offender registries.

In addition, the RMS needs to interface to state, regional, and federal information sharing systems (e.g., RISSnet, N-DEx, ISE). These interfaces should be based on national standards, such as GJXDM, NIEM, and NCIC.		Mandatory





